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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
fnrroduction

T'he Board of Directors of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has the pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2023, which disclose the state of affairs of the Bank. This report has
been prepared in accordance with the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) No. 1, Directors’ Report.

I. Incorporation

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda. India was incorporated under the
Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002 on 4th December, 2003. The bank commenced business on 13th October 2004 with its first
branch in Dar es Salaam. The bank opened its second branch in Arusha on 11th August 2007, third branch in Kariakoo on 11
June 2013 and fourth branch in Mwanza on 21st July 2014,

2. Vision & Mission Statement
Vision: To be a leading provider of the complete range of financial service solutions operating locally and internationally 1o
all segments under one roof’

Mission: Leverage our local and global expertise to be a leading provider of complete range of financial service solutions by
delivering high quality innovative and world-class products while maintaining the highest standards of governance and ethics.

3. Corporate Values

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is determined to creating an unwavering guide through the path to growth, intergrity and
passion.

4. Principal activities

The Principal activity of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is to provide banking and related services stipulated by the
Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006. These includes but not limited to provision of banking services to a range of
private, business, and charity customers. The bank is providing full-fledged banking operations and serving the people in all
walks of life. The bank is financing businessmen, traders, manufacturers, retailers, individuals, employees of well esiablished
companies. institutions, government departments, and Small and Medium sized Enterprises (SMEs). Those products includes
Savings products, Loan products, Trade Finance products, Treasury products, Remittances, SMS Alerts, Mobile Banking and
a range of other E-banking products,

The bank have been implemeting its third year of the five year Business Strategy for the period from 2021 to 2025 with a
thrust of providing best banking services to the community and achieve a total business of Tsh 373 billion for the year then
ended. There has been no significant change in the principal activities of the bank during the financial vear ended 31st
December 2023,

5. Objectives
The following are the main objectives of the Bank:

To provide banking and related services stipulated by the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006; To provide banking
services 1o a range of private. business, and charity customers; To provide full-fledged banking operations and serving the
people in all walks of life. The bank is financing businessmen, traders, manufacturers, retailers, individuals, employees of
well established companies, institutions, government departments, and Small and Medium Sized Enterprises (SMEs). Those
products include Savings products, Loan products, Trade Finance products, Treasury products, Remittances, SMS Alerts. and
a range ol E-banking products; and To promote easy access to financial services for entrepreneurs running micro, small and
medium sized enterprises (MSMLEs).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINU ED)

6. Annual General Meeting

The 19th Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the financial year 2023 was held as per the provision of the Companies Act
on 6th June 2023 at 12.30p.m at Grand Meria Hotel, Arusha. Tanzania where, receipt of proxy was taken as read and
accepted on behalf of Bank of Baroda and Mr. Suresh [, Gajja. Mr. Jakkaiah Lalam, General Manager, Bank of Baroda -
India represented Bank of Baroda India (sharcholder) and Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh (Managing Director) represented Mr.
Suresh L. Gajjar (sharcholder) on the basis of proxy given by by the shareholders. Mr. Mark Shirima and Mr. Juma Rashid
represented the Regulator (Bank of Tanzania) as the main stakeholder of the bank. Mrs Prasitha Prasad and Mr. Ahmed Said
represented the statutory auditor of the bank, M/S Nexia SJ Tanzania and Mr. Viann S. Komba represented the Tax
Consultant and Company Secretary of the Bank, M/S T/A Leop & Viann Associates.

The chairperson, Mr. Debadatta Chand welcomed the Board members, shareholders and stakeholder's representative for the
discussion as Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh (Managing Director) proposed and Dr. Imanueli Daniel Mnzava and Dr. Saganga
Musa Kapaya seconded the following resolutions be adopted as an Ordinary Resolution;

* Passed unanimously the resolution for approval of the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st December

2022, the Auditors’ Report thereon, the Directors’ Report attached thereto and Accounting Policies including the notes,

- Passed unanimously the re-appoiniment of M/S Nexia SJ Tanzania of P.O.Box 12729, Dar es Salaam as external auditors
of the Bank holding office from conclusion of the 18th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 19th Annual
General Mecting subject to the provision of section 170(1) of the Companies Act, 2002 and Regulation 5(1) of the Banking
and Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Regulation 2014 made under section 22(4) of the Banking and Financial
Institutions Act, 2006.

- Passed unanimously the resolution that, the approval be and accorded for payment of dividend of TZS 32.52 per share o
sharcholders of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited subject to payment of withholding tax and regulatory approvals.

7. Composition of the Board of Directors
The Directors of Bank of Baroda ( Tanzania) Limited who held office during the vear arc as follows.

Qualification | Appointed’ |Date of Date of

Name of Directors Position (Age |/Discipline Resigned | Appointment |Resignation

Mr. Debadatta Chand Chairman 53 |Banker Continuing |21-Feb-2022  |Not applicable
Mr. Jakkaiah Lalam Member 56 |Banker Appointed [4-Sep-2023 Not applicable
Dr. Emmanuel Sadiki Member 61  |Accountant Continuing |8-Apr-2018 Not applicable
Dr. Saganga M. Kapaya Member 47 |Accountant | Continuing |[2-Jun-2018 Not applicable
Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa Member 47  JAccountant Continuing |2-Jun-2018 Not applicable
Dr. Kadida Mashaushi Member 59  |Accountant Appointed |29-Nov-2021  |Not applicable
Dr. Mato James Magobe Member |50 JAccountant Appointed |13-Nov-2023  |Not applicable
Mr. Aditya Hmyan-ﬂhlgh Managing Director |56 |Banker Appointed |21-Feb-2022  [Not applicable
Mr. Vikash K. Pandey Ly Visnagiog 39 |Banker Appointed [8-Apr-2021  |Not applicable
Dr. Immanueli D, Mnzava Member 59 JAccountant Resigned [26-Oct-2017  |27-Sep-2023

The Company secretary as at the date of this report was Mr. Viann S. Komba of T/A Leop & Viann Associates. Mr. Viann
5. Komba of T/A Leop & Viann Associates is also the tax consultant of the bank for the vear then ended.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

8. Corporate Governance

Bank of Baroda ( Tanzania) Limited has nine (9) Directors. With exception of the Managing Director and the Deputy Managing
Director. no other directors hold executive positions in the bank. Seven of the board directors are non-exccutives, The board is
responsible for safe custody and investment of depositors’ funds. Consequently. the hoard commits sufficient time for
oversight of affairs of the bank including identification of key risk areas, considering significant financial matters, reviewing
the performance of management business and ensuring a comprehensive system of internal control policies and procedures is
operative in compliance with sound corporate governance principles. The effective oversight by the board for the overall
responsibility of the bank entails possession of necessary skills to make sound and independent judgments and be able to apply
immediate remedial measures. The board is required to meet at least four times in a year and delegates the day to day
management of the business to the Managing Director assisted by senior managent team. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is
committed to the principles of effective corporate governance recognizing the importance of integrity, transparency and
accountability.

The bark shall continue its endeavor to enhance its shareholders’ value by protecting their interest by ensuring performance at
all levels, and maximizing returns with optimal use ol resources in its pursuit of excellence. The bank shall comply with not
only the statutory requirements, but also voluntarily formulate and adhere to a set of strong corporate governance practices. The
bank believes in setting high standards of ethical values, transparency and a disciplined approach to achieve excellence in all its
sphere of activities. The bank shall strive hard to best serve the interests of its stakeholders comprising shareholders, customers,
government and society al large.

In connection with effective oversight, the board of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited during the year has a responsibility to
ensure high standard ol corporate governance through establishment and effective functioning of various board commitices and
management in key arcas.

8.1 Board Committees
The following Board Committees were reconstituted during 2023. All the committees are made exclusively of non-executive

directors. The commitiee addresses the issues relating to the formulation of policies and assessment of its compliance, which

s . - , Board Audii |Board Credii |Board Risk |Board Rem |
S.no |Name of Director Designation | Position Committee Committee Committee |Commifiee

| |Mr. Jakkaiah Lalam Director Member N . Y Y

2 |Dr. Immanueli D. Mnzava ||Dircctor Member N Y " : 4

3 |Dr. Emmanuel Sadiki Director Member * N N N

4 |Dr. Saganga M. Kapaya Director Member Y N N N

4 |Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa Director Member N Y Y »

5 |Dr. Kadida Mashaushi Director Member Y N N N

7 |Dr. Mato J_ Magobe || Director __[Member N Y : Y

*: Chairman. Y: Member of the Committee, N: Non-member of the Committee
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
8. Corporate Governance(continued)
8.1 Board Committees (continued)

i) Awdit Commiitee

The committee met 4 times during the year. The Managing Director, and the Senior Manager Credit participated in the mectings
as invitees.
Meetings Weeting |
S.no | Name of Director Nutionality Designation Period scheduled aftended
1 |Dr. Emmanuel M. Sadiki Tanzanian Chairman 12 Months 4 4
2 |Dr. Saganga M. Kapaya Tanzanian Member 12 Months 4 4
3 |Dr. Kadida R. Mashaushi Tanzanian Member 12 Months 4 4

The Audit Committee provides directions to the bank including the organisation,
imternal control weakness and inspection within the bank and follow-up of the suggestion of statutory/external a

and Bank of Tanzania inspections.

The Committee also reviews the adequacy of internal control systems, structure of internal department, its staffing paticrn and
hold discussions with the intemal auditors/inspectors on any significant finding and follow-up action thereon. It also reviews the

financial and risk management policies of the bank.

{ii) Credit Commitiee

The commiltee met 4 times during the year. The Managing Director

operations and quality control of internal audit,
udit of the bank

and the Senior Manager Credit participated in the meetings

as invitees.
Meetings | Meeting
Smo  |Name of Director Nationality  |Designation Period scheduled | attended
| |Mr_Jakkaiah Lalam Indian Chairman 3 Months 1 |
2 |Dr. Immanueli D. Mnzava | Tanzanian Chairman 9 Months 3 3
3 |Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyvusa Tanzanian Member 12 Months 4 4
4 |Dr. Mato J. Magobe Tansanian Member 2 Months 1 l

The main function of the Credit Committee is 10 monitor performance and quality of the credit portfolio, appraise and approve

loans within its credit approval limit and recommend to the Roard for approval facilities bevond its limnit.

The Committee reviews Credit Policy at least once a year and ensures thai it
ihe identification, measurement, monitoring and control of credit risk as well as having appropriate p

risk management,

contains sound fundamental principles that facilitate
lans and strategics for credit

fiii) ~ Risk Commitiee
The committee met 4 times during the year. The Managing Director and the Head of Risk Management participated in the
meetings as invitees.
Meetings | Meeting

Smo  |Name of Director Nationality  |Designation Period scheduled | attended

1 |Dr. Immanueli D. Mnzava | Tanzanian Chairman 9 Months E. 3

2 |Dr. Mato J. Magobe Tanzanian Chairman 2 Months 1 1

3 ' |Mr_Jakkaiah Lalam Indian Member 3 Months 1 1

4 |Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa Tanzanian Member 12 Months 4 4

The main function of the Risk Committee is to assist the Board in reviewi
recommend them for approval. It provides the Board with regular assessments of the group risk pro

implementation of risk management action plans.

The Committee also reviews adequacy and effectivencss of balance sheet management and its related risks through Asset

ng risk management strategies and policies and
file and monitors

Liability Management Commitice (ALCO) reports presented by Management to the Commitiee every quarter.

(iv) RKemuneration Comimirtee
The committee met 4 times during the year. The Managing Director and the Iead of Human Resource participated in the
Meetings | Meefing

S.no  |Name of Director Nationality  |Designation Period scheduled | attended

] Dr. Bupe J. Mwakyusa T anzanian Chairperson 12 Months 4 4

2 _|Dr weli . Mnzava | Tanzanian Member 9 Months 3 3

3 |Dr. Mato J. Magobe Tanzanian Member 2 Months 1 1

4 . |Mr. Jakkaiah Lalam Indian Member 3 Months 1 |

The main function of this Committee is 10 ensurc a fair transparent and

on quality of people, their performances and capabilities to run the
overseeing the compensation system's design and operations on behall of the

Board shall be approved by the Board of Directors.

COMPANY SUCCESS

equitable remuneration 10 employees and dircciors based
fully. It is a Board committee responsible for
Roard. The Charter of Remuneration committee of
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

8. Corporate Governance(continued)

8.2 Management Team

The management of the Bank is under the Managing Director who is assisted by Deputy Managing Director, General Manager
(Credit and Operations). The Unit heads and Branch heads also assisst the Managing Director in managing the bank. The
Managing Director is the overall incharge of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited responsible for planning, monitoring and
business growth, the main responsibilities of which includes regulatory compliance, formulation of policies, liaison with
stakeholders, product innovation and marketing.

The Deputy Managing Director oversee the Finance, Administration, Human Resources and Information Technology. The General
Manager oversee the Credit, Branch Banking, Treasury. Treasury and Credit departments are headed by Senior Managers. Dar es
Salaam and Arusha branches are also headed by senior managers. The Operations of the Bank are organized by the following
department; credit department, Treasury and Foreign Exchange depariment, Finance department, Risk and Compliance department
and Information Technology department and Audit Department. Heads of Compliance and Head of Risk departments are directly
reporting to the Managing Director excepl the Internal Auditor who repornts directly to the Board Audit Committee with a second
line of reporting to the Managing Director,

8.2.1 Management Committees

The following Sub-Committees of the Board were reconstituted during 2023. All the committees are made exclusively of
executive directors and heads of operating units. The commitice addresses the issucs relating 1o the formulation of KPT's and KRI's
and assessment of its compliance together with day to day management of the performance of the management, which brings about
consistent improvement in the banking performance. The sub-commitiees also appraise the Board Committes of the issues for
discussion at the higher level including policies formulation and bank limits revision.

(i) Assets and Liabilities Sub-Committee (ALCO)

The commitiee is composed of Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director, Head of Finance, General Manager(Credit and
Operations), Head of Credit, Head of Treasury and Branch Head Dar ¢s Salaam Main branch. The committee is responsible for
managing the balance sheet 1o ensure proper allocation of resources 10 achieve performance targets. The commitiee meets once in a
month.

The committee also review the liquidity position on current and prospective basis, monitoring the funding alternatives to ensure
adequacy of the liguidity is maintained. It also review the capital level for determination of its adequacy in rclation 10 expected
growth and asset quality, reviewing the actual performance against established targets and analysing the reasons for variance for
remedials, Measurement and monitoring of investment risk to ensure quality portifolio of assets 1o maintain the portifolio within
the limits set by the Board and regulatory requirements is another responsibility of the ALCO.

(if} Enterprise Risk Management Committee (ERMC)

Enterprise Risk Management Committee is a committee of senior management formed with primary objective of management and
measurement of Enterprise Risk al the bank. The committee met 3 times during the year. The Managing Director, and the Senior
Manager Credit participated in the mectings.

The Committee is responsible for design and implementation of Enierprise Risk Management Framework, as approved by the
board which is comensurate with the bank's risk appetite, business strategy, regulatory requircments and overall governance
framework prescribed by the board.

The Committee reviews and assess the overall risk profile of the bank including key issues, risk incidents, limits, breaches, internal
and external changes having material impact on the risk profile of the bank, non-compliance with policy and procedures, pending
corrective action plans, capital computation and all its allocation, issucs identified by audilors and the rcgulator and issue
appropriate pudance 1o ensure effective Enterprise risk management framework.



|{i_|1-|1'l ol the Iirectors

vanial Report & Financial Statements TH25

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
8. Corporate Governance(continued)

8.2 Management Team (continued)

(iii) Tanzania Credit Commifiee

Apart from the Board Credit Committee which is vested with full powers of lending, and which meets in a quarter
and when required, there is a Tanzania Credit Committee comprised of the Managing Director as the Chairperson,
and the members of the Commitiee are the Deputy Managing Director, General manager {Credit and Operations),
Branch Head of Dar s Salaam main branch, Senior Manager Credit, Senior Manager Forex and any other officer(s)
with the permission of the chairperson mav be invited.

The Committee reviews and assess the proposals falling under the discretionary Lending Power of Managing
Director and the duties of the Commitiee remain same as presently delegated at substantive of Managing Director
whereas, pr s beyond such delegated powers are to be referred to the Board Credit Committee with
recommendations. The commitiee meets once in a week and the frequency of the meeting relaxed to incorporate as
much meetings as per necessity arising within the week.

fiv) Business Continuity Program (BCP) Committee

The primary objective of BCP is to maintain viable recovery strategies and plans to ensure that all critical information
/ data arc salvaged in the minimum possible time in the event of major incident. A major incident is any accidental,
natural or malicious event, which threatens or disrupts normal operations or services for sufficient time to
significantly affect or cause failure of essential services rendered by the bank, including essential services rendered to
internal customers

The Committee will normally meet once in a hall year and as and when exigencies arise. The quorum of the
committee will be 3- members including the Chairman. The BCP Committee will deliberate and decide upon the
following:

 Identification of business function groups. BIA (Business Impact Analysis), Prioritization, fixation of RTO
(Recovery Time Objectives) / RPO (Recovery Point Objectives) for the [unction groups.

- Identification of the threats to which the Business Processes are exposed and the assessment of the potential damage
and disruption associated with these threats if occurs.

- The BCP Committee will be responsible for overall implementation, monitoring and periodical reviews of the BCP
in the Bank and appraise to Risk Management Committee (RMC) and Board once in 6 months

- The BCP Committee at the Branches / other operating units comprise of the Branch Manager / Head of the Unit,
Accountant and Officer/s and award staff members as may be nominated for the purpose by the Branch Manager /
Unit Head and responsible for the following functions:

- To arrange mecting with Customers to disseminate information.

- To prepare and conduct periodic testing, mock drills and review/updation of BCP of the Branch or Operating Unil

-To decide and declare the disaster and to notify the Regional Office / Reporting Authority
- To initiate action as per the pre-prepared action points based on the BCP Policy, Guidelines and BCP of the
Branch / Operating Unit,

8.2.2 Relationship with Stakeholders

In fulfilling their responsibilities, the Directors believe that they govern the Group in the best interests of
sharcholders, whilst having due regard to the interests of other stakeholders in the bank including customers,
employees, regulators and suppliers. The Management communicates regularly with major shareholders and the
parent bank throughout the year by participating in stakeholders meetings. Feedbacks from these meetings is reported
to the Board.

The Bank continues to maintain good relationship with all Stakeholders. The bank apart from suggestion box
displayed at each bank's branch. has established a website through which stakeholders are encouraged to post
questions and ideas for quality banking services provision. The management of the bank is dedicated to offering besi
hanking services to its customers having put forward the infrustructure for needs identification and product or service
development therewith. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is keen 1o its customer satisfaction and contribute o the
economy growth while remaining compliant to the legal and regulatory requirements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
8. Corporate Governance(continued)

8.2.3 Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The Key Management of the bank is comprised ol the Managing Director, Deputy Managing Director, General
Manager (Credit and Operations) and Senior Managers reporting to the Managing Director and Deputy Managing
director. The remuneration of key management for the year ended 31st December 2023 was TZS 1,775 Billion (TZS
1.632 Billion in 2022)

8.2.4 Employees Welfare

The relationship between employees and management continued to be cordial. The bank provides training, medical
assistance and loans to its employees. Employees were deputed for training conducted by Bank of Tanzania (BOT),
National Board of Auditors and Accountants (NBAA) and Tanzania Institute of Bankers (TIOB) in the areas of Risk
Management, Accounting Standards, Regulatory Compliance, Banking operations, etc. There were no unresolved
complaints reccived by management from individual employees or groups thereol. The bank recruited and trained new
stalT to provide unhindered services 1o customers.

8.2.5 Related Party Transaction

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has a related party arrangement that provide guidance on the conduct of insider
trading. Insiders are allowed to borrow 1o the limit not exceeding ten (10) percent for single borrower and twenty five
(25) percent in aggregate against the bank's core capital at any point in time. Parties are considered related if one party
has the ability to control the other party or excrcise significant influence over the other party in making financial or
operational decisions. Banking relationships are entered into with related parties to include key management stalT,
Directors. the associates and companies of kev management staff and Directors.

There were no loans and advances to neither companies associated to related parties nor related parties for the
Financial year 2023. Key management stafT are provided by loans covered under the human resources policy and
hence not defined as related party transaction. However, as per Transfer Pricing regulation, key managemenl stall
loans and deposits are considered as related party transactions hence disclosed under note 26.

8.3 Ethical Behaviour and Organization Intergrity
Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited corporate governance structurc involves managing and controlling relationships
amongst different stakeholders including the parent bank, Board of Directors, employees. customers, suppliers and the
community at large. The Board and all employees of the bank observe values and ethical business praclices as
enshrined in the Bank of Baroda Code of Ethics which governs all its business interactions and relationships to
stakeholders.
9. Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board accepts ultimate responsibility for the risk management and internal control function of the Bank of Baroda
(Tanzania) Limited. It is the responsibility of the Management to ensure that adequate internal control systems are
developed and maintained on an on-going hasis in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding:
: The effectiveness and efficiency of operations,

The safeguarding of the Bank’s assets,

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations,

The reliability of accounting records,

Business sustainability under normal as well as adverse conditions, and

Responsible behaviours towards all stakeholders.

Good governance is dependent on adequate and effective Governance Framework which is in line with best
international practices. In order lo ensure the internal controls remain adequate, the Bank has a full-Medged Risk and
Compliance function that coordinates and oversecs the implementation of enterprise wide risk management framework
within Bank of Baroda ( Tanzania) Limited. In addition, ihe Board through its Risk Committees evaluated the internal
control systems during the financial year ended 31 December 2023. It is of the opinion that they adequately and
efficiently mitigate risks inherent in Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited's operations.

1. Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks that may significantly affect the Bank’s strategies and development are mainly operational, fraud
and financial risks. The description of the operational, fraud and financial risks contend the Bank and whose related

management controls in place are as hereunder:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
1. Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

10.1 Fraud risk
The Management has put in place several controls to mitigate the fraud risk. These controls include:

-The Bank has adequate segregation of duty control in each sensitive area of the operations which include cheque
handling, Automated Teller Machine (ATM) card and Personal Identification Number (PIN) controls and strong
room,

-The Bank has adequate internal reports generated by system on daily basis that helps detection of any
misappropriations and irregularities, and

-The Bank has an Internal Auditor who verifies and provides assurance on the banks operations which serves as a
protection against any future risk.

10.2 Operational risk

The Bank is exposed to operational risks that may arise from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems
or external events. However, Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limiled has adequate operational risk policies and risk
management framework that cater for mitigation of these risks

This is a risk resulting from the Bank’s activities not being conducted in accordance with formally recognised
procedures including non-compliance with Know Your Customer (KYC) and account opening procedures.
Management has put in place several conirols to mitigate the operational risk including the following:

-The Bank has operational manual for its daily activities, which provides adequate procedures and rules of attending
every activity of the Bank,

-The Bank has several policies, which guide the operations of every department and units in a bank. and

~The Bank has a system of ensuring every transaction and event concluded were properly under supervision and
authorization.

10.3 Financial risk
The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management ol some degree of risk or combination of risks. More details of the financial risks facing
the Bank are provided in Note 4 to the financial statements,

Financial risk includes credit, liquidity and market risks. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited overall risk
management policies are set oul by the Board of Directors and implemented by the Management. These policies
involve identification, measurement, evaluation and mitigation or control of such risks. The additional details of the

[inancial risks facine the Bank arc provided in the notes to the financial statements.

Management has put in place several controls to mitigate the financial risk including the following:

- The Bank has adequate policies that guide cach operation relating to financial risk like credit policy, financial policy
and Management ol Asset and Liability policy,

- Management has internal reports that serve as red flags which puts attention to management in thoroughly
reviewing the respective operations like net open posilion, exchange rates and general asset revaluation, and

- The Bank has in place insurance policies that cover for credit life Insurances for its borrowers.
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18, Principal Risks and Uncertainties {Continued)

10.3 Fimancial rivk {Contimued)

1031 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financinl liabilities when
they fall due and 1o replace funds when they are withdrawn The consequence may be the failure 1o meel obligations o
repay depositors and fulfill commitments o lend

The Bank’s hiquidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by the Asset and Liability
Comminee (ALCO) of the Bank, include:

Day-to-day funding, managed by monoring future cash flows 1o ensure thad requirements can be met. These include
replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The Bank mamiain an AClive Presence in money
markets 10 enable this to happen;

Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable asscts that can easily be liquidated as profection against any unforeseen
inlerruption 1o cash fow,

Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against intemnal and regulatory requirements, and

Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturitics.

18.3.2 Tmtevest rate risk

Cash Now interest rale risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will Nuctuate because of
changes in marke! interest rates. Fair value nterest rate risk is the nisk that the value of a financal instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on expasure 1o the effects of fluciuations in the
prevailing levels of markel interest rates on both ils fair value and cash flow nsks. Inleres] mMarging may INCHEEse as a
result of such changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movemenis arise. The Bank's Assel and
Liability Committee (ALCO) sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which
is monitored regularly by the Bank More details of the mierest risks facing the Bank are provided in MNote 4 1o the
linancial statements.

10.3.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk of loss dug to the inability or un-willingness of a client or the guarantors to meet their obligations.
Credit risk is a major risk faced by the bank. In order 1o manage this risk, the Board has designed a credit policy for the
bank. which is documented and forms basis for all credit approval decisions. The bank also controls this risk by imiting
cxposure 10 one borrower or a group of borrowers, geographical arca, industrial segments, eic. Regular audit of credit
prmcuhunduﬂimh}'ﬂuimmmnm:m&lﬁmurdmhﬂmhm“mmwg
exposure 1o credil risk and other disclosures are given in note 4 1o the Financial Statcments.

10.3.4 Systemic Risk

Systemic risk is the risk that an event at the micro level of an individual bank could then trigger instability or collapse an
entire industry or economy. The systemic evenl adversely affects a number of systemically importani intermediaries of
markets and the trigger of which can be exogenous shock or endogenous shock. The event is strong when the
intermediaries concerned fail or when the markets concerned becomes dysfunctional

To ensure the control over the systemic risk, Bank of Baroda (Tanzama) Limited as a financial institution works under
dupﬁmmdmcmnmmmmiﬁnnfnd:mphtﬁnmmmﬂmwﬂlmmwms in the
irﬂmmwdﬂ:myutlum.ﬁ:ﬁmkh&mmuhmplmmmmim comphance 1o regulatory
requirements, international and local reporting and ‘or sccounting standards, Basel standards, laws in force of the banking
business and many other controlling platforms

I1. Capital Structure
The Bank's capital structure for the year under review is as follows:

W] 2m
TZ5 000] _ TZS 000

Authorized share capital

25,000,000 shares of TZS 1,000 each 2% 000,000 | 25,000,000
lesued and fully paid-up share capital

10,000,000 shares of TZS 1,000 each 10,000k, (00 | 10,000, 000
12, Regulatory Capital

During the period, the Bank has complied with the requirements of Bank of Tanzania. The details on caprtal management
are provided on Note §

13, Sharehalders of the Bank

Below are the sharcholders of the Bank:

S/ |Sharcholder Nationality 033 2022
Ordinary shares Orrdinary shares
1|Bank of Baroda Indian 9,990 999 9 999 999
2| Suresh Goyjar Tanzanian l 1
= Total 10,000,000 10,000,000

14. Resuits and Dividends

The Board passed the resolution 1o approve payment of drvidend of T£5 32.52 per sharc out of the retained caming vide
the AGM held in June 2023, The Board is proposing to a dividend of T£S 30.01 per share which is 15 percent (2022 10
percent) of the unaudited profit and plough back the remained profit 1o strengthen owned funds.

10
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

15 Performance for the Year

15.1 Tanzania Economic Review

The global economic growth was attributable to various factors including: improvement in the production and distribution of
products, and continued decrease in transportation cost and global inflation in addition is forecasted to slow to 6.8 percent in 2023
compared 10 8.7 percent recorded in 2022. According to World Economic Outlook report, the slight decrease in growth is due to
tighter monetary policy introduced by central banks aided by lower international commodity prices. Tanzanian Fconomy recorded
a GDP growth rate of 5.3 percent during the third quarter of 2023 compared to 5.2 percent recorded in the corresponding quarter
in 2022,

The third Quarter Gross Domestic Product (QGDP) 2023 in an absolute term at current prices increased to TZS 45.8 trillion from
TZS trillion 40.1 recorded in the similar quarter in 2022, Further, the third quarter real QGDP 2023 (at 2015 constant prices)
increased to TZS 35.7 trillion from TZS 33.9 trillion achieved in the corresponding period in 2022, equivalent 1o 5.3 percent
growth.

The share of broad economic activities to GDP in the third quarter of 2023, shows that tertiary activitics accounted for the largest
share of 42.5 percent followed by primary activities (32.7 percent) and secondary activities (24.8 percent). Note that, shares to
GDP were compiled before taxes adjustment.

During the period under review. Financial and Insurance services recorded the highest growth of 18.7 percent, followed by
Information and Communication (11.3 percent); Mining and Quarrying (10.2 percent); Electricity (9.7 percent), Other Services
which includes Arts & Entertainment and Activities of Houschold as an Emplover (9.0 percent); and Accommodation and Food
Services (7:4 percent).

All economic activitics undertaken in the economy during July to September 2023 contributed differently to the economic growth,
During the reference period, economic activities that contributed significantly to the growth include agriculture with 14.2 percent,
followed by Financial and Insurance (13.0 percent), Mining and Quarrying (10.4 percent), Transport and Storage (9.1 percent),
Construction (7.6 percent) and Manufacturing (7.3 percent).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
IS Performance for the Year (continued)

15.2 Banking Sub-sector Review (continued)

Banks® lending rate sustained a downward path. partly explained by the decrease in credit risk in the banking sector, The overall
lending rates decreased to 15.34 percent from 16.06 percent in the corresponding period in 2022. The negotiated lending rates
remained almost unchanged at around 13 percent. The overall deposit rates displaved a modest grown 1o an average of 7.45
percent from 6.94 percent. Negotiated deposit rates remained broadly unchanged at around 9 percent. The spread of one vear
inierest rates narrowed 1o 6.99 percentage points from 9.04 percentage paoints in December 20232,

The interbink cash market (IBCM) continued to facilitate trading of the shilling liquidity across banks. During the month of
December 2023, the total value of transactions amounted to TZS 2.488.6 billion. compared with TZS 1,961.0 billion traded in the
preceding month. Transactions of 2-7 days continued 1o constitute the largest share, accounting for 73.1 percent of total markel
turnover. The overall IBCM and the 2-7 days” interest rates increased to 6.81 percent and 6.89 percent, from 6.46 percent and 6.36
percent registered in the preceding month, in that order.

Foreign currency liquidity in the Interbank Foreign Exchange Market (IFEM) improved, aligning with seasonal receipls from
tourism and agricultural exports. Receipt of foreign loans and grants, as well as moderation in commodity prices also contributed
to the improvement in the foreign exchange liquidity. Owing to these developments, there was no central bank intervention to
support imports in the market during the review month.

Consistent with the foreign exchange liquidity situation, the shilling traded at an average rate of T7S 2.516 per US dollar,
compared with TZ8 2,501.22 per US dollar in the preceding month. This was equivalent to an annual depreciation of 8.4 percent,
from TZS 2,320.23 per US dollar traded in December 2022. Despite the nominal depreciation, there was no significant exchange
rate misalignment, as the real effective exchange rate moved close to its long-run trend.

12
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15 Performance for the Year(Continued)

15.3 Performance Highlights of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Ltd

15.3.1 Key Business TZS in Mn
Particulars 31.12.16 | 31.12.17] 3n12.a8] 3ni2.09] 3n1220] 31.12.21] 31.12.22] 311223
Total Deposits 178,505 179.898] 212,860
Customer Deposits 123.031 140,666 152,169 176,753
Inter-Bank Deposit 1.521] 4,021 27.728] 36,107
Advances (gross) 56,1300 86,008 160,48
L__Of which; Net | 54.867] 86.008] 98573 149.33 159,117
Total Business 180.682] 215.621 330, 373,341
231,438] 265,269
ln_lc_rus'r. Income 16,558 18,973

Interest Expense
= -

Net Interest Income

MNon-Interest Income

11,875
5,638

11,293
5,182

Total Income-
Operatin g Expenses
|Operating Fri':.t:u_
Net Profit(Loss)

Ciross NPA

‘Nul NPA
< DEPOSIT

Bank provides all Banking services which includes accepting deposits in local currency and foreign currency mainly in USD,
The type of deposits are Saving Bank, Current Account, Call Deposits, Recurring Deposits and Fixed Deposits. Aggregate
Deposit has increased to TZS 212.86 Billion from TZS 179.90 Billion. Customer Deposit as at 31" December 2023 was TZS
176.75 Billion grown from 152,17 Billion as at 31% December 2022 of which TZS 52.57 Billion {29.74%), (2022: TZS 49.61

Billion (27.72%)) was low cost deposits. Average cost of deposit stood at 4.14% p.a. up from 3.88% in FY 2022. Out of total
deposits, 60.54% (2022: 64.44%) was in foreign currency and 39.46% (2022: 35.56%) in Tanzanian Shilling.

4,169 1,401 827 . ;

6.469

< ADVANCES

Bank is active in financing various lypes ol economic activities which mainly include trading, manufacturing, construction,
hotel, real estate, services like transport, export of agricultural commodities, import of goods and personal loans. As on
31.12.2023, the Gross Advance stood at TZS 160,48 Billion against TZS 151.00 Billion as on 31.12.2022. The Y-0-Y growth
was 6.28% (2022: 1.48%). Oul of tolal advances 67.94% (2022: 31.79%) was in US Dollars currency and 32.05% (2022:
68.21%) in Tanzanian Shilling. Yield on advances stood at 8.80 p.a. down from 8.66% p.a. in FY 2022, The performing assets
stood at 98.93 percent (2022: 97.25 percent) of gross advances. The Gross NPA relaxed to 1.07% in 2023 from 2.75% in 2022
on account of both recovery and write ofT from NPA accounts. The ratio was below the maximum requirement of 5 percent, The
Bank has continued its steps to focus on NPA recovery so that the Gross NPA level be maintained below 5%.

& REMITTANCES

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited branches provide active remiitance services inside the country and overseas. For prompl
remittance service, Bank 1s using various channels of remittance services.

13
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15 Performance for the Year(Continued)

15.3 Performance Highlights of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Ltd(continued)
15.3.2 Key Ratios_ s

S 2007) 2018 2019) 2020] 2021] 2022 2023
Ll %l %l 6 %l %] %)

=

T 06| 204 1657 cod] w2 os] 1552
Credit growth 532 vae| t622] 173s] Toas] vw] eas

Growth in Income | 49
Growth in Operating Expenditure 11.38] -8.09] 18.93)

Growth in Profit before Tax 27.99) -17.05] -50.36] 198.3] -30.28] 26.19] -36.15

Net Profitgrowth -48.64] 228.8] -40.75] 56.05] -38.39
Return on Equity 7.64 6.5] 2.81] R3B] 4.76 6.74) 4.04
Return on Asset | 169 082 os9] 1.7l 077 14 o7

6.44] s588] 5.92] 6.9 ss0] 467 463

50.01) 46.71] 47.49] 45.93] s4.48] s53.10] s4.46

Net Interest Income (NIM)

10.55] 10.84] 28] 209 305 275] 1.07
752] 84] 1.22] 077 226] 1.67] 022
15.3.3 Variance Analysis

We are pleased to analyse the significant variances in the trend for the period under review compared to
the performance of the Bank for the financial vear ended 31" December, 2023,

The decline in net profit before and afier taxation was on account of the increase in impairment and write
off of impaired accounts as per regulatory requirements. There was a write off during the vear which was
not provided as per accounting standards amounting to TZS 1.3 Billion (2022: Nill),

15.3.4 Bank’s performance vis-a —vis Industry
During the last eighteen years of operations, the Bank could establish its business at sizable level. In the

financial year 2023, despite challenging industry scenario, the Bank has shown improved performance in
all the parameters. Operating efficiency wise, the Bank continued to be one of the best banks operating in
l'anzania. In adverse environment most of the banks in Tanzania are either experiencing sharp decline in
profit or incurring net loss. The performance of the Bank for the Financial Year 2023 as compared to the
Industry averageis as under:

i. .The Gross NPA of the Bank was 1.07% but lower than the industry average of 4.10% and the
regulatory minimum requirement of 5%. The Bank has continued with its focus on NPA recovery and
has taken measures to maintain the NPA below the maximum requirement of 5% in FY 2023,

ii. The Return on Average Assets of the Bank was 0.76%. The Bank has continued with its focus on
assets quality improvement and has recorded a growth of 14.61% (total assets) in the Financial Year
2023.

iii.The Net Interest Income (NIM) of the Bank was 4.63% . The Bank has continued with its focus on
assets quality improvement and has maintained a growth of 16.60% (interest bearing assets) in the
Fmancial Year 2023.

14
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16, Cashflow

The Bank's investment in government securities has grown by TZS 15.64 billion (2022: TZS 6.24 billion ) and lending 10
customers rose by TZS 9.77 billion (2022: TZS 2.07 billion). On the other hand, deposits rose by TZS 32.96 billion (2022;
125 1.39 billion). Such investment activities and customer deposits are the major factors explaining the Bank's movement in
cash flow generated from operations. From lotal investments in securities. 12% is expected to mature in 2023, The Bank
continues to maintain sound liquidity position to enable it meet its cash flow commitments and requirements.

17.  Liguidity and Funding Policy

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited strongly emphasise on liquidity risk management and daily cash flow management which
is handled by the Treasury Department to ensure the Bank holds sufficient liquid assets 1o enable it continue with normal
operations. Asset Liability Committee (AL.CO) also manages the Bank's exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring that limits are
in line with realistic assumptions and tracks compliance on a monthly basis. Stress test to ascertain the Bank's resilience to
market shocks is done by Risk and Compliance Depariment.

The Bank's main sources of funding are customers' deposits and sharcholders' funds and occasionally interbank borrowings as
part of its normal market operations. All these initiatives aimed at reducing dependency on interbank borrowing and provide
financing of midierm to long term projects.

I8. Treasury Policy

The Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limiled operates a centralized treasury depariment for managing treasury activities in
accordance with the framework of treasury policies and guidelines approved by the Board. The treasury department transacts
with a number of counterparty banks and financial institutions, and adopts a systematic approach to the control and
monitoring of counterparty credit risk. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited, through its Risk and compliance department,
monitors compliance against the principal policies and guidelines. The key treasury policies are:

18.1 Market Risk

The policy provides guidance/ framework for managing exchange rate and interest risks, also protect the value of the bank
assets from adverse effects of market rate movements.

18.2 Liquidity Risk

Provide guidance for managemeni of the liquidity risk under normal and crisis siwation. This set out a liquidity management
decision making structure in the bank, approach to funding and planning for liquidity planning and management. regulatory
compliance and contingency funding. Strong cash generation in recent years and a prudent [inancing strategy have resulted in
adegquately position to withstand the credit crisis in the bank and capital markets.

15
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18. Treasury Policy (Continued)

18.3 Contingent Funding Plan

Munaguja stressed liquidity situation created by a problem or market wider crisis and ensure that the bank is able all the time
lo meet its matured obligations as they fall due and remain as good as poing concern.

18.4 Limit

Provide puidance/framework for managing market and liquidity risks for the counterparties at domestic and international
level. It also provides guidance for investment and credit exposures limit.

18.5 Current Liquidity and level of Borrowing

The Bank ensures that liquidity is monitored and adequately manages its liquidity gap by determining the excess or shortage
of funds at selecied maturity dates by tracing cash inflows and outflows over a series of specified time buckets. The aim is
to trace and reflect the maturity periods for the Bank's assets and liabilities.

18.6 Maturing profile and Un-drawn commitment Borrowing

The Bank is sound and will remain to be sound in liquidity position as it has adopted a more conservative approach to the
investment of its surplus cash, with money market deposits being placed with relatively stronger financial institutions for
shorter periods. Bank counterparty credit risk has been, and continues to be, monitored closely on a systematic and ongoing
basis, taking account of the size of the institution.

I9. Future Develapment Plans

In 2024, the Bank will continue implementing the 5-year strategy focusing systems and products while also improving
quality of service. The Bank will also continue with aggressive recovery of bad loans and enhancement of credit risk
management.

20, Accounting Policies and Critical Judgement and Estimates

Results of the Bank are sensitive to the accounting policics, assumptions and estimates that underline the preparation of the
financial statements. When preparing the financial statements, it is the Directors’ responsibility under the Tanzania
Companies Act 2002 to select suitable accounting policies and to make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent. The accounting policies that are deemed critical o our results and financial position. in terms of the materiality of
the items to which the policies are applied and the high degree of judgment involved, including the use of assumptions and
estimation, are described in Note 2 to the financial statements.

21,  Solvency

The state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 December 2023 is set out on page 28 of the financial statements. The Directors
consider the Bank to be solvent within the meaning ascribed by the Tanzania Companies Act, 2002. In the opinion of the Directors,
there are no prejudicial matters that can affect the Bank.

22, The Key Resources and Strength

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited continues to give its top priority to key resources which are people and technology
which gives us strength in service delivery, productivity and financial strength. Customer satisfaction depends first and
foremost on people and hence employees continue to be the most important asset as demonstrated by this year's result
which is a tribuic to their commitment and hard work, Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has skilled and experienced
employees who are considered as key resources in pursuing its business objectives. Bank ol Baroda (Tanzania) Limited
continues to encourage open and honest communication in decision making. ICT is also an important enabler in service
delivery. This is the reason why Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited has continuously investing in the state of art
technology to realise operational excellence and better service delivery to our customers.

Productivity has been the key [ocus for Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited and thus the initiatives we embarked on during
the year have made us achieve significant progress in embedding productivity culture throughout Bank of Baroda
(Tanzania) Limited. Our aspiration is to continuously make the Bank more customer focused and efficient in the long term,
while managing short term expenses within appropriate level. Given the strength of Bank of Baroda ( Tanzania) Limited we
have ample capacity 10 support our customers.
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23.  Fiduciary Responsibility

Members of the Board of Directors as stewards of public trust always acted for the good of the bank rather
than for the benefit of themselves throughout the period. Reasonable care was exercised in all decisions
taken by the bank without placing the Bank under unnecessary risks,

24.  Environmental Conirol

The Bank is committed to the prevention of environmental pollution and is in compliance with relevant
environmental laws in the area it operales as a minimum standard and seek to implement best practices
wherever possible.

25. ' Gender Parity

The Bank gives gender equal opportunitics to all Tanzanians during recruitment and filling ol positions
provided they have the required qualifications and ability. Out of the total number of emplovees in the Bank
as at 31 December:

Gender 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Male il 31 28 28 29
Female 22 21 21 i 20
Total 53 52 49 50 49

26. Employees Welfare
26.1 Training Program

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited spent TZS 31.52 million(2022: TZS 45.46million) on stafT training in
order to improve employees” technical skills and performance. A total number ol 25 (2022: 25) siall were
financed by the Bank to attend various trainings during the year. In year 2023, Bank of Baroda ( I'anzania)
Limited continued to provide e-learning training courses covering soft skills and specialised courses for ICT,
risk management. relalionship management and credit management which enabled employees o acquire
relevant skills for better understanding of their work, The Bank is encouraging stall to pursue Distance
leamning Programme on banking certificale and diploma courses that can be easily accessed countrywide. In
house training programmes and structured programmes oflered locally and internationally were also part of
the training programmes for 2023 to enable experience sharing and exposure.

26.2 Medical Assistance

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited continues to provide medical services to its employees, their spouses and
up to four children. The services is structured in such a way that, all local employees are covered by health
insurance while expartriate employees are served on reimbursement basis. The spirit of Bank of Baroda
{Tanzania) Limited is to assist emplovees work life balance and ensure better productivity.

26.3 Heaith and Safety

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited takes all reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard health, safety and
welfare of its employees. A safe working environment is maintained for all employees by providing adequate
and proper personal protective equipment, training and supervision as necessary. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania)
Limited observes Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) requirements and ensures full

compliance.
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26.  Employees Welfare (continued)

26.4  Financial Assistance to Staff
Incentive Loans and advances arc available to all confirmed employees depending on the assessment and discretion of
management as o the need and circumstances in line with the Human Management Resources and Credit Policies.

26.5 Staffing
As at 31 December, 2023 Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited's number of employees were 53 employees from 52 in 2022,

Qut of the total number of stafl in Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited as at 31 December 2023: 31 were male and 22
lemales. Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited gives equal access to employment opportunities and ensures that the best
available person is appointed to any given position free from discrimination of any kind and without regard to factors such
as gender, marital status, tribe, religion. and disability which does not impair ability o discharge dutics.

26.7 Disabled persons
It remains the Bank’s policy to accept disabled persons for employment for those vacancies that such persons are able io
fill. The bank has not recruited any disabled persons during the vear.

27.  Gratitude

The Board of directors express its sincere gratitude to the Government of the United Republic of Tanzania, Bank of
Tanzania, Bank of Baroda (India) and Tanzania Investment Centre, valued clients, staff. all the stakeholders and well
wishers for their co-operation and support.

28.  Events Afier Reporting Period

There are no material events, adjusting or non adjusting, which have occurred between the reporting date and the date when
financial statements are authorized for issue.

29,  Auditor
M/s Nexia Tanzania, of P.O. Box 12729, Dar es Salaam were appointed as the independent auditors of Bank of Baroda
(Tanzania) Limited for the year ended 31 December 2023, The auditors have expressed their willingness 1o continue in

office. A resolution proposing the reappointment or appointment of auditors of the Bank for the vear ending 31 December
2024 will be placed in the Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

/ﬁeﬁ
..-_:_-_-_:,.-.-rﬁ‘-u.unu:...--.----" ssssssssEns e fu
Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh Mr. Vikash Kumar Pandey
Managing Director Deputy Managing Director
Data:fﬂ/v_‘!; /.?g:}_\.f- Date : aaa’b_?»/ln&lp
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Responsibilitics

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of 2002 to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the bank as at the
end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of the Companies Act of 2002 and Banking and Financial
Institution Act, 2006. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, the requirements of
the Companies Act of 2002, Banking and Financial Institution Act, 2006 and the guidelines of Bank of Tanzania, and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the bank and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet
these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls
are monitored throughout the bank and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
bank’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the bank is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the bank.
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the bank endeavours to minimize it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.

The directors acknowledge that they are responsible for establishing appropriate policies and procedures to prevent non-
compliance with laws and regulations (NOCLAR), including whistle blowing procedures as a necessary part of good
internal governance.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the bank’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2023 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the bank has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the bank's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the bank's external auditors and their report is presented on pages 21 to 26

The financial statements set out on pages 27 to 50, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were authorised
and approved by the board of directors on 28th March 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

e

Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh Mr. Vikash Kumar Pandey
Director Director
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The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the Auditors and
Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995, requires financial statements to be
accompanied with a declaration issued by the Head of Finance/Accounting responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the entity concerned.

As stated above, it is the duty of the Finance Manager as the Professional Accountant to assist the directors to discharge the
responsibility of preparing financial statements of the company that show a true and fair view of the company's position and

performance in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and as per requirements of the Tanzania
Company’s Act 2002, and Banking & Financial Institutions Act. Full legal responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements rests with the directors as disclosed in the Statement of director's responsibility on page 19.

I CPA Deogratias Edward Ndushi being Head of Finance/Accounting of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited hereby
acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023 have been prepared
in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards, Banking and Financial Institutions Act.2006 and the
Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002,

[ thus confirm that the financial statements give a true and fair view position of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Ltd as at 31
December 2023 and that they have been prepared based on properly maintained financial records.

—st

Signed by: ..o BN T

NBAA Membership No.: ACPA 2964

pate: . X3_/03/202¢
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TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethice Standards Board for
Accountant's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the National Board of
Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) Code of Ethics and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters,
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)
No. | Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
1. Impairment loss on loans and advances to customers

Impairment is a subjective area due to the level
of judgement applied by management in
determining provisions. The Bank is required o
calculate impairment of loans and advances in
accordance with both the regulations of the Bank
of Tanzania and IFRSs.

We focused on the identification of impairment
events, which differs based upon the type of
lending product and customer. Judgement is
required to determine whether a loss has been
incurred We also focused on the measurement
of impairment losses, including the assessment
of whether historical experience is appropriate
when assessing the likelihood of incurred losses
in respect to loans. As disclosed in under the
significant accounting policies, judgement is
applied in determining the appropriate
parameters and assumptions used to calculate
impairment. For example, the assumption of
customer that will default, the wvaluation of
collateral for secured lending and the expected
future cash flows of loans.

The disclosure associated with credit risk is set
out in the financial statements, under Significant
accounting policies point number 3.

« Our audit procedures included the
assessment of key controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of Iloans and
advances, and evaluating the methodologies,
inputs and assumptions used by the Bank in
calculating collectively assessed impairment
losses, and assessing the adequacy of
impairment allowances for individually
assessed loans and advances. We compared
the Bank's assumptions for impairment
allowances to externally available industry,
financial and economic data and our own
assessment in relation to key inputs. As part
of this, we assessed the Bank's estimates and
assumptions used including the consistency
of judgement applied in determination of the
amount and timing of expected future cash
flows, and consideration of economic factors
and historical default rates.

« We evaluated whether the Bank's assumption
on the expected future cash flows, including
the value of realisable collateral was based on
up-to-date valuations and available market
information.

e« We also assessed whether the financial
statements disclosures appropriately reflect
the Bank's exposure to credit risk.

« We challenged management assumptions
regarding the recovery rate of unsecured
facilities.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2.

Information control systems and controls over financial reporting in the financial statements.

The Bank's financial and accounting and
reporting systems are heavily dependent on
complex systems. Significant reliance on IT
systems presents a significant risk to the Bank as
the core banking system is considered complex
due to multiple significant functionalities and
interdependencies with other systems. We spent
significant audit effort in the audit of these
systems as part of the audit process, as it is
critical for the control environment of the bank
and therefore, we determined it to be a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures in this area included, among
others the use of our IT auditors / spacialists in:

Reviewing of IT Governance practices to access
their adequacy, the existence of IT Risk
assessment, and the role of IT Steering
Committee (if any) and the Board of Directors;

Reviewing information systems within the
financial institutions including core banking
system, operating systems, applications,
databases, servers and networking devices and
confirm whether all the systems are robust
enough to ensure data integrity, confidentiality
and availability;

Performing application controls testing which
include configuration controls, sensitive access
and segregation of duties controls, interface
controls, data integrity controis and obtain
reasonable assurance on the accuracy and
completeness of reports;

Reviewing and accessing whether balances
resulting from all transactions and data
processed within the Bank's IT system are
accurately captured and reported in the General
Ledger, the Financial Statements and Returns
submitted to the BOT, and

Reviewing IT security controls including
application security, privileged access, audit
trails, system monitoring and maintenance,
controls over program and system changes,
integrity and systems ability to recover from
unexpected shutdown's and ability to recover
from a disaster resulting in loss of data. The
business continuity practice in its totality was
reviewed.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the corporate information, report of the directors,

statement of directors’ responsibility and declaration of the head of finance, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s opinion thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance thereon.

Directors’ are responsible for the other information. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Directors’ are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002

and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless Directors either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is given in the
Appendix to Independent Auditor's report. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for, and only for, the Bank's members as a body in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2002 and for no other purpose

As required by the Companies Act, 2002 we report to you, based on our audit that

() we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(i) in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from our
examination of those books: and

(i) the Bank's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income are in agreement
with the books of account.

As required by the Companies Act, CAP 212 Act No. 12 of 2002, we are also required to report to you if, in
our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Bank has not kept
proper accounting records, if the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records, if
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors' remuneration and transactions with the Bank is not disclosed. In respect of the
foregoing requirements, we have no matter to report

As required by the Banking and Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Regulations, 2014 of Tanzania, we
report to you, based on our audit, that:

* In our opinion, the capital adequacy ratios as presented in Page 42 of the financial statements have
been computed in accordance with the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006, and the Banking
and Financial Institutions (Capital Adequacy) Regulations, 2014 of Tanzania.

Lo
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Nexia Tanzania

Certified Public Accountants

2™ Floor, Oyster Plaza, Haile Selassie Road
P.O. Box 12729, Dar es Salaam, Tanzania.
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Sujata Jaffer

Engagement Partner

NBAA registration no,. ACPA 718
Dar es Salaam
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Date: 23 /03[ 2024
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR(CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF BANK OF BARODA (TANZANIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Appendix to Independent Auditors Report

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also-

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis' of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
aftention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such
disclosures are inadequate, to mcdify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes 31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22
1 TZ5'000 TZS 000
Interest income 6 18.972.510 16,557,942
Interest expense 7 (8.668,012) (6,977.431)
Net interest income 10,304,498 9,580,511
Fees and commission income 8 1.394.371 2,172,226
Foreign exchange gain Bla) 879.178 641,531
Other operating income 8(bh) 67.586 156,447
Operating income 12,645,633 12,550,715
Operating expenses 9 (7.372.169) (7.247.816)
Impairment losses on loans and advances 10 (2,306,357) (656,015)
Bad debts written off 10 . .
Profit before tax 2.967.107 4,646,885
Tax expense 11 (963,354) (1.394,788)

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the bank

Earnings per share (TZS per share) 3l

200

1,003,753 3,252,096

325

The accounting policies and notes on pages 31 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Report of the Independent auditor is on pages 21 to 26

The financial statements on page 27 to 50 are approved by the Board of directors and signed on its behalf by;

A

Mr. Aditya Narayan Singh
Director

Mr. Vikash Kumar Pandey
Director

BEENa
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Bank of Tanzania

Deposits and balances due from banking institutions
Government securities

Net loans and advances to customers

Property and equipment

Current income tax recoverable

Deferred income tax

Right of usc asset

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Customer deposits

Deposits and balances due to banking institutions
Other liabilities

Lease liability

Current tax

Total liabilities

EQUITY

Sharc capital
Retained eamings
Revaluation reserves
Statutory reserve

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Notes

12
13
14
16
21
17
24
19
18

22
23
20
25

30

31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22
TZS "000 TZS "000
18955618 18,917,930
37.316,017 28.593.780
43,370,250 27,734,795
159.117.160 149.336.176
1.685.491 1.774.888
1,413,529 1.488.697
311,717 407 361
1,691,123 2.129.994
1,408,097 1,054,764
265,269,002 231,438,386
176,753,172 152.169.239
36,106,897 27. 728,358
801,798 1,093,008
1,929,496 2,032,047
134,630 134,630
215,725,993 183,157,372
10,000,000 10,000,000
38.451.183 35.444.072
248.733 248,733
843,003 2588 209
49,543,009 48,281,014
265,269,002 231,438,386

The accounting policies and notes on pages 31 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Auditor's Report is on Pages 21 to 26

The financial statements on pages 31 to 50 are approved by the Board of directors on 28th March 2024

and signed on its behalf by:

I'Il'Illl‘illwmﬁ:iilllilililiiiiﬂ

Aditya Narayan Singh

Managing Director

Report of the Independent auditor is on page 21 to 26
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Vikash Kumar Pandey

Deputy Managing Director
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A J Financial Statements 2023 Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
31-Dec-23  31-Dec-22
Notes TZS "000 TZS "000
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax SC1 2.967,107 4,646,884
 Depreciation 21 279,643 287,532
Gain on disposal/revaluation - (25)
Prior period errors SCE (741.758) (55,348)
Provision for impairment 10 2,306,357 656,015
Net cash flow before changes in working capital 4,811,350 5,535,059
Change in working capital
Increase in Statutory Minimum Reserve (SMR) 12 (1,893,423) (566,360)
months 14 (15,635,455) (6,248,504)
Increase in deposits due from other banks 13 2,073,600 556.688
(Increase) in loans and advances to customers 16 (12,087,340) (2,720,135)
Increase in other assets 18-19 256,350 1.919.696
Increase in customers deposils 22 24,583,933  (4,944,782)
Increase in deposits due to banking institutions 22 8.378.539 6,337,129
Decrease in other liabilities 23&25 (393,851)  (2.277.355)
Cash used in operating activities 10,093,702  (2.408,564)
Tax paid 11 (963,354) (1,394,788)
Net cash flow used in operations 92,130,348 (3,803,352)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Purchase of property and equipment 21 (189,910) (117.410)
Net cash flow used in investing activities (189,910) (117,410)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 8,940,439 (3.920,762)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 33,497,165 37,417,927
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 15 42,437,604 33,497,165

The accounting policies and notes on pages 31 to 50 form an integral part of these financial
statements approved by the Board of directors on 28th March 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

i

Aditya Narayan Singh VVikash Kumar Pandey

Managing Director Deputy Managing Director
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1 REPORTING ENTITY

Bank of Baroda (Tanzania) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda Ltd., India. It has been incorporated

under the Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002 on 4 December 2003. The Bank of Tanzania issued a license to conduct
Banking Business under Section 5 of the Banking & Financial Institutions Act, 1991 (As amended) on 7 October 2004. The
Bank commenced business on 13 October 2004, The principal activity of Bank of Baroda ( Tanzania) Limited is to provide
banking and related services stipulated by the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006,

The address of the registered office is as follows:
Plot No. 149/32
Ohio / Sokoine Drive
P. 0. Box 5356
Dar es Salaam, Tanzania.

The Bank’s financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023 have been approved for the issue by the Board of
Directors on 28th March, 2024. neither the entity's owners nor others have the power to amend the financial statements
afier issue,

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied 1o all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statcments are prepared in compliance with Intcrnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The
financial statements are presented in Tanzania Shillings (TZS) which is also the functional currency, rounded to the nearest

The financial statements comprise statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position. statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows, and notes to financial statements. Income and expenses, excluding the
components of other comprehensive income, are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Transactions with
the owners of the Bank in their capacity as owners are recognised in the statement of changes in equity.

2.2 Basis of preparation
The Bank's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). Additional information required by the Tanzania Companics Act 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institution
Act, 2006 were included where appropriate. The financial stalements comprise statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and the
notes including summary of significant policies to financial statements.

The measurement basis applied in the preparation of these financial statements is the historical cost basis, except where
otherwise stated in the accounting policies below, The financial statements are presented in Tanzania shillings (T£S) and
the amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand shillings except where otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires the directors to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies. Changes in
assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed. The directors
believe that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Bank's [financial stalements therefore present the

financial position and results fairly

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)
1.3 Changes in accounting policy and procedures
i} Standurds sdopted

Title Key requirements

Mamhuf&:cmxﬁ;tmm[?}mn.mmmhuwbmmmdm!mm.&uh
H;;:;:ﬂ;:mnuﬁ}urrmhnhuﬁngmmmihnﬁdnﬂmdd:rmdnﬂuup;}m.mz!
oy i publizhed an amendment 1o [FRS 16 tha ides an opts 1 i
Amendments 1o IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - Covid- lessees from assessing whether a rent concession MMWWE:ILWWMF@.THJM“;
19 related rent concessions :I:cttnmml‘nrmﬁmﬂmuﬁmhﬂwmugurﬂywmﬂifmmmhuﬂuﬂ:ﬁnmm
In many cases, this will result i accounting for the concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in
which the event or condition that tniggers the reduced pavment occurs.

The amendment had no impact on the financial statements of the Rank

Tlmlmmhr:mnhl':rﬂtﬁllt-ﬂl'whcﬂmnfll-'ﬂ.ﬂl‘-"byly:mlnl]my!ﬂi!ndmmmnd
Amendments to IFRS 17 and IFRS 4, date of the temporary exemption m IFRS 4 from applying IFRS 9, Financial instrument until 1 Janaary 2023,
*Insurance comtracts’, deferral of IFRS 9

These amendments had no mmpact on the financial staements of the Bank.

Amendments 1o [FRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7. :
mmzmm.mmmmmwmnrmum.mlmh

[FRS 4 and [FRS 16 Interesi s
sl : Rate oniacement of one benchosark with sn slternative one.

These amendments had no impact on the financial ststements of the Bank

ii) New standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

Uertain new accounting standards and iterpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31" December 2022 reporting periods and have not
bﬂuwlyldnﬂadhyﬂuﬂm-ﬂmmmnmmelMMMﬂEMEMaﬂmmfwﬂmﬁgmm“
foresecable future transactions

Title Key requirements Effective date

The ammendment mm to improve accounting

palicy disclosures and 1o help wsers of the ¥
Amendments w0 IAS | mmmﬂmemw&hmlmtEﬂm@rw_m
Statement 2 and 1AS 8 ehanges in accounting cstimates and changes in "CHINMINE on or after January 1, 2023. Farly application is
accounting policies. IFRS Mamual of accounting Pemifted
para 3.24-3 3]

These amendmenis require companies 1o
Amendmenis to IAS 12 Deferred Tax recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on s ) 3 ]
:ﬂmmm“dhﬁﬂﬁnuﬁngﬁmmpﬁmg’wﬂumﬂmdw My 2L Sioaon: e e i
& il X - dedacii ik on or after Tanuary 1, 2023, Early application ig permitted.
IFRS Manual of sccounting para 14 18

These amendments includes requirement for
sale and leaschack transactions i [FRS 16 to

explain how an entity account for sale and ' T
Amcodments to IFRS 16 — Lenses on leascback after the date of the transaction. Sale T "hisned September 2022, Effective for annual periods

sale and leaschack and leasshack transsctions where some or glf PoPRRNE on or afler January 1, 2024, Eardier application is
ﬁilﬂﬂmnmm”mm'
that do not depend on an mdex or rate are most
likely to be impacted.

These pmendments clonfy how conditsons wath ) {
Amendments 1o IAS 1 — Non current which an entity must comply within twehve M“‘m November 2022- Effective for annual l"m':"k
Iabnlies with eovenanis months after the reporting period affect the mmmlﬂrlm I. 2024, Early apphcation is
lansification of a lisbility. posmiticd,

This standard replaces IFRS 4, which permits o Published May 2021 with amendment in June 2020 and
wide varety of practices in accountmng for December 2021, Effective date: Annual periods begmning on
insurance contracts. [FRS 17 will fundamentally or after Jamuary 1, 2023,

IFES 17 — Insurance Contracis change the accounting by all entities that issuwe
insurance cootracis and invesiment coniracts
with discretionary participation featurcs. [FRS
Manual of accounting Chap 30a
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.4 Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognized within ‘interest and similar income’

and “interest and similar expense’ in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest
rate method.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, except for:
(a) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets for which the original credit-adjusted cffective interest rate is

applied to the amortized cost of the financial asset.
(b) Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit impaired but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or
*stage 3°), for which interest revenue is calculated by applying the cffective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e.net of the

expected credit loss provision).

Interest accruing from non-performing credit accommodations is suspended from being recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, When a credit accommodation is upgraded to a current status, the suspended interest
is released to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.5 Fees and commission income

Linless included in the effective interest calculation in (¢) above, fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Loan appraisal fees for loans that have been or are likely to be drawn down are
deferred and recognized over the period of the loan using the effective interest method. Fees and commission expense are
deferred and recognized on an accruals basis when incurred.,

2.6 Foreign currency transactions

On initial recognition, all wransactions arc recorded in the functional currency (the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates), which is Tanzanian Shillings.

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converied into the functional currency using the exchange rate
prevailing at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities at the statement of financial position date denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing as at that date. The resulting
foreign exchange gains and losses from the settlement of such transactions and from year-end translation are recognized on a
net basis in the statement of comprehensive income in the yvear in which they arise.

2.7 Financial instruments
Classification
Financial instruments held during the vear were classified as follows:

= Demand and term deposits with banking institutions, loans & advances and other assets were classified as 'loans and

reccivables'.
- Government sccurities were classified as "held-to-maturity investments'.
= Borrowings, trade and other liabilities including customer deposits were classilied as financial liabilities.

Recognition and measurement

2.7.1 Financial assets

Financial assets are any assets that is cash, a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another financial
institution, a contractual right 1w exchange financial instrument with another institution under conditions that are potentially
favorable or equity instrument of another enterprise.

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categorics: Financial assets at fair value through statement of
comprehensive income; loans and receivables: held-to-maturity investments: and available-for-sale financial assets.

Management determines the classilication ol its investments at initial recognition.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.7.1 Financial assets (continued)

1. Financial asset at fair value through statement of comprehensive income

The Bank assesses al each [inancial position whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. If any such
evidence exisls, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In the case of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables, the recoverable amount
is the present value of the expected future cash flows, discounted using the asset’s effective interest rate.

A provision for unidentified loan impairment is established to cover losses that are judged to be present in the lending
portfolio at the statement ol financial position date, but which have not been specifically identified as such. This provision is
based on available historical experience and experienced judgment.

When a loan is deemed uncollectible, it is written ofT against the related provision for impairments. Subsequent recoveries
are credited to the provision for loan losses in the statement of comprehensive income. If the amount of the impairment
subsequently decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the release of the provision is credited as a reduction
of the provision for impairment in the statement of comprehensive income.

l.oans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans. In subsequent years, the renegotiated terms
apply in determining whether the asset is considered to be past due.

2.7.1.1 Recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognized al fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized when the right to
receive cash flows from the financial asscts have expired or when the bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

2.7.1.2 Statutory reserves

Where impairment losses required by the regulators exceed those computed under IFRS, the excess is recognized as a
statutory loan loss reserve and is accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings. The statutory loan loss reserve is not
distributable.

2.7.1.3 General provision reserves

Gieneral provisions, recorded as general reserves, are based on 1% of loans and other risk asscts classified as current. General
provision is part of tier 2 capital as opposed to statutory reserve. The definition of other risk assets is provided in the Banking
and Financial Institutions (Management of Risk Assets) Regulation 2014 to mean Total Assets of a bank MINUS its loans,
cash, gold, amounts due from the Bank, Government securities, securities issued by the Bank of Tanzania, Government
securities issued by other Government institutions which are unconditionally guaranteed by the Government as to repayment
of principal and interest at maturity date, bank premises, furniture and equipment, and such other assets as may be declared by
the Bank as non-risk.
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1.7 Financial instruments {contimoed )
2.7.1.4 Derecognition of financial assets

Financial ass¢is are derecognised when ihe contraciual rights 1o receive the cash Mows from these assels have ceased (o exist
or the assets have been ransferred and substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the assets are also transferred
(that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred, the Bank tests control to ensure that continuing
mvolvement on the basis of any retained powers of control does not prevent derccognition). Financial habilities are
derecoenised when thev have been redeemed or otherwise extineuished

1.7.2 Financial linbilities:
All financial liabilites are recognised initially at fair value of the consideration given plus the transaction cost.
Subsequently, all financial liabilitics arc carmied ot amortised cost using the effective imerest method

2.7.2.1 Presentation

All financial assets are classified as non-current except, those with maturities of less than 12 months from the financial
pasition date, those which the directors have expressed inlention of holding for less than 12 months from the financial
position date or those that are required to be sold to raise operating capital, in which case they are classified as current assets

All financial habihties are classified as non-current except. those expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating
"cycle, those payable or expected to be paid within 12 months of the financial position date and those which the company does

nol have an unconditional nght to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the financial position date.

2.7.2.2 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the nghts to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the company has
transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires,

1.7.2.3 Offsetting

I'inancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reponied in the sistement of financial position only when there 15 a
legally enforceable night 1o set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention 1o seitle on a net basis, or realise the assel
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.8 Property and equipment

All categories of property and equipments are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that 15 directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount of are recognised as separale asscl, as appropniate, only when it
15 probable that future economic benefil associated with the asset will low 1o the bank for more than one year. All other
1 repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

Depreciation is provided in full in the month of additions. No depreciation is provided in the month of sale'disposal.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the fixed asseis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Raie Method
Computers and software 3333% Straight line
Vehicles 33 33% Straight line
Furniture & fithings 12.50% Reducing balance
|.easehold improvements 12.50% Reducing balance
Office equipments 12 50% Reducing balance

Property and equipment are periodically reviewed for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its
estimaied recoverable amount, 11 15 wntten down immediately 1o 1s recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposal of
property and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining

operating profil
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2.9 Other accounting policies

a)

c)

d)

]

Acceptances, guarantees and letters of credits

Acceptances, guaranices and letiers of credit are accounted for as off balance sheet transactions and disclosed as
contingent liabilitics.

Leases

Leases of asscts where a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of comprchensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease period. Prepaid operating lease rentals are recognized as assets and are
subscquently amortized over the lease period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks. other short term highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, including, cash and balance with Bank
of Tanzania, and amounis due from other banks. Cash and cash equivalent excludes the cash reserve requirement held
with Bank of Tanzania.

Income taxes

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount charged/{credited) in respect of current tax and deferred tax in determining
the profit or loss for the year. Tax is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income except when it relates 1o
items recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income, or to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is also recognized directly in equity.

Current income tax is the amount of income tax payable on the profit for the vear determined in accordance with the
Tanzania Income Tax Act.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carryving values for financial reporting purposes. Tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date and expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled: are used 10 determine deferred tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilized.

Frovisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or contractual obligation as a result of past events,
which will result in an economic outflow and where a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Employee benefits

All short term employee benefits are provided for in the income statement on accrual basis. Further, emplovees are
members of a defined benefit scheme, employees contribute ten percent of their salary and emplover contributes ten
percent of the emplovees” salary to the scheme. The employers™ portion is accounted for in the period it falls due.

Comparatives

Where ever necessary, comparative figures have been regrouped to confirm to the changes in the presentation in the
current vear.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Operating in a liberalized and globalised environment, bank 15 exposed 1o different types of risks emanating from
financial and non-financial factors. Risks faced by the bank have been categorized s credit risk, marker risk and
Hamidity rizk

1]

b

Credit risk

Credit nisk is a risk of loss due to the nabidity or un-willingness of a client or the guarantors to meet their
obligations. Credit risk is a major risk faced by the bank. In order 10 manage this risk, the Board has designed a
credit policy for the bank, which 15 documented and forms basis for all credit approval decisions. The bank also
controds this nsk by hmiting exposure 10 one borrower or a group of borrowers, geographical area, industrial
weemenie sle

Regular sudit of credit process is undertaken by the imternal audit. The classification of advances based on the
overdue balances, showing exposure 1o credit risk, is given below -

Particulars Gross loans and Secured U'nsecured
advances {including
(including interest unrecovered
i suspense) imterest)
TZS "D00 TES ") TES ")

Year ended 31 December 2023
Fully performing 158,760,759 141 088 B4E 17,671,912
Sub Standand 124,821 117931 6.89]
1 mruaked Fuad 139 4230 30 2KE3 1% 143
Lioss 1,455 830 663,972 791,858
i&ﬂ: HI.INI Il.'ll’n--i IM

Year ended 31 Nevember 20037
Fullv merfnrming 146 B4R 449 12371 173 N 477 T
Suh Standand 21 056 2R I 2 352
b finl &0 198 13 153 17045
I nas 18R TR 1661 455 221 323

151,002,482 130,264,485 20,737,996
—_—

The bank 15 holding an impatrment provision of TZS 945,399,677.06 (2022; TZ5 1,289 .367) against the gross
loans and advance

Market risk

The bank is exposed to market risk. Market risk anses from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity
products. The Board sets limits and reviews it at regular interval based on the risk that may be accepted. Further,
the exposure is monitored on a daily basis.

i} Interest rate risk

The bank is exposed to varous risks associated with the effect of Auctuation in the prevailing levels of marke:
Interest rates on its financial position and cash flow. The bank has the discretion 1o change the rates on deposits,
loans and advances in line with changes in market trend. These measures minimize the bank’s exposure 1o
inleres! rate risk. Refer 4(c) for exposure on the interest rate risk.

ii) Currency risk

The bank is exposed 10 the risk that the value of & financial instrument will flucruate due to changes in foreign
exchange rate. The bank is involved in foreign currency market only to the extent of buying and selling to the
extent of required currency. The bank 15 not involved in foreign currency forward contracts and thus the risk is
limited. Refer to 4 on exposure to currency nsk.
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"3 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

b) Market risk {continsed)

i} Liquidity risk
ThlI:l-l:'lhllmﬂmﬁﬂy:ﬂhmm:mhﬁhﬂmm&mwnqﬂ%mmmm
hﬂhmudpnmimﬂmﬂmndmltrummnﬂlﬂmuﬂ The Board has set limid based on their CXPETIETcE
ﬁhmmmmd‘mlMhmhhhmmmﬂm-ﬂmlhmnnmhrd of inter-bank and other
hﬂnﬂ*mghuldrﬂmﬂﬁuldhm:ﬂ:uﬂ:ﬁmnﬂ:hﬁﬂlmﬂihhnfm

RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

Foreigm exchange risk

USD GRP EURD INR TOTAL
Year ended 31 December 3023 TS " TS ") TS 00 TS “Disid TES '
Foreien currency assets
Cash 1,607 DGR 16,544 140,916 1,764 528
Rank Halances i currend account 16,897 433 1,191,807 330 3355 32008 18674813
Laans and sdvances 108,080, T6S - - 108, 080, T6S
Cheques and tem for clearmg 61,75 . . 61,799
her assets 121,783 a4 I 822 1,024,290
Total 127,662 849 | 200,036 702,293 32,018 129,606,196
Forewgn currency babalityes
Depasils 91 482,118 | 404, 566 Bb3 832 = 93,750,507
Lstter of eredn 21,253 . - - 21,253
Cuaranmecs - = " = =
Other liabilines 37,068, 700 4,392 255 37,073,355
Total 128 572 080 [ 408 G358 Bl 077 - 130845114
et open long A short ) posation (909 231 ) {199,921} {161, 783) 2018 (1,238.914)
Nea open long positon - . - 12,018 2008
Net open short position (909,231 ) (199,921 ) 161,783 = (947 369)
Net open postion B0 231 199,921 161,783 32018 1,238.918
Core capital ABATH AN A& 42N 438 Ad A38 438 46,428 4080 46, 428 438
Maxsmum allowable exposure {7 5% of core capital) 3482133 3482133 JAB2133 3482133 3482133
Over / (under) exposure (2,572902) (I282212) (332034%) (1450,115) (2243219
Year ended 31 December 2023
EQrsisn cuffency aasats
Cash 2 056 159 18 B3 430476 - 2,506 1 38
Bank Balances 1n cusrent aocount 12,662,730 124 788 398910 14,815 13,400 743
Toans and advances OR 053 37] . . 0B _953 37]
Cheques and item for clearing 7583 . = 7583
Ochier assets 774,034 265 1418 TI5.717
Total 114,454 5358 343,156 K30 RO 14,815 115,643 513
Foreign cumeney hiabalities
Depoats B5 539 824 Sl 254 1133253 = BT 01 341
Letier of eredn 257,564 - - . 257 564
Cusraniees 30,003 - = - 30,003
Orher lanbilities 29,004,27) 4,204 251 - 29,008,726
Total 114,531 662 412 dsR 1,133,504 = 16377634
Met open long{shor ) positien (377, 104) (69.112) (302, 700) 14815 (T34, 100)
Met open beng positsom - - - 4815 14815
et open short position (377,104 (68, 112] (302, o) = T48 916
el open posilion AT, 104 69112 302,700 14 815 T34 00
Core caprial 47 002 Tl 42002 701 42 00F T 42,002,701 42,003 700
hﬁmdtw.hhmmﬂ? % of core capatal) 3,150,203 3,150,203 1150203 3,150,203 3,150,208
(wver | (under) exposure (2,773,098) (3,081,091} [l“?,&l;li-t (3,135388)  (2416.102)
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4 RISK MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
D Sensitivity analysis
i) Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The impact on the profit afer tax arising on a 5% increase or decrease in interest rates would be as follows:

2023 2022

TZS "000 TZS "000

+ 5% movement (628,256) (709.941)
- 5% movement 628.256 709,941

_———
ii) Foreign exchange risk sensitivity analysis
The impact on the profit after tax arising on a 5% fluctvation in the bank's major operating currencies would be as

follows:
' 2023 2022
USD GBP EURO USD GBP EURO
TZS "000 TZS "000 TZS "000 TZS "000 TZS "000 TZS "000
+ 5% movement (31.823) (699.725) (5.662) (13,199) (2.419) (10.594)
- 5% movement 31,823 699,725 5,662 13,199 2.419 10,594
————————— —_——

5 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the “equity’ on the face of the statement of
financial position are:
*  To comply with the capital requirement set by the regulator:
*  To safeguard the bank’s ability to continue as going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to share holders

and benefits to other stake holders; and

*  To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the bank’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Commitiee, as implemented by the Bank of Tanzania (BoT), for
supervision purposes. The required information is filed with the BoT on a quarterly basis.

The BoT requires each bank to:
i) Hold a minimum level of core capital of TZS 15 billion;

ii) Maintain a ratio of core capital to the risk-weighted assets plus risk weighted off-balance sheet at or above the required
minimum of 12.5%: and
iii) Maintain total capital of not less than 14.5% or risk weighted assets plus risk-weighted ofT balances sheet items.

The bank’s regulatory capital as managed by ils management is divided into two ters:
Tier 1 capilal: - Share capital, retained earnings and reserves created by appropriation of retained eamings. Prepaid
expenses and deferred charges are deducted in arriving at Tier 1 Capital.

Tier 2 capital: - Qualifying subordinate loan capital, collective impairment allowances and unrealized gains arising on the
fair valuation of equity instruments held as available for sale.

The risk-weighted assets are ensured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified according to the nature and
reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risk associated with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any
cligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some adjustments to
reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses,
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5 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The table that follows summarizes the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the bank for the year

ending on 31 December 2023,

Paid up ordinary share capital
Retained eamings
Qualifying period profits

Sub Total (A)

Deferred tax assets
Pre-paid expenscs

Sub Total (B)

TIER I CAPITAL (A - B)

TIER Il CAPITAL
Revaluation Reserves

TOTAL REGULATORY CAPITAL

RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS

On balance sheet (Form 16-1-515(i))

OfT balance sheet (Form 16-1-S15(ii))

Market Risk (100/12 of Form 16-1-S15(iii))
Operational risk position (Form 16 16-1-15(vi)

TOTAL RISK WEIGCGHTED ASSETS

Year 2023
Ratio of core capital (Tier 1) to total risk weighted assets
Ratio of total capital (Tier 1 plus Tier I1) to total risk weighted assets

Year ended 31 Dec

Ratio of core capital (Tier 1) to total risk weighted assets
Ratio of total capital (Tier 1 plus Tier 1) to total risk weighted assets

42

2023 2022
TZS '000 TZS "000
10,000,000 10,000,000
36447430 32,191,976
2,003,753 3,252,096
48,451,183 45,444,072
311,717 407,361
463,548 407,546
773,265 814,907
47.675.918 44.629.165
—_———
111,930 111,930
111,930 111,930
47,787,848 44,741,095
141,258,622 138,065,676
53,215,221 56,633,182
1,350,274 89.870
11,231,324 9,564,068
207,055,442 204,352,796
Requirement as Actual on 31
per BOT December
12.5% 23.03%
14.5% 23.08%
12.5% 21.84%
14.5% 21.89%
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INTEREST INCOME

Imterest on loans and advances
Interest on government securilics
Interest on deposits and hank balances

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on other bank deposits

Interest on other - non hank deposits
Interest on saving account deposits
Interest on lerm deposil sccounts
Interest on others

FEES & COMMISSION INCOME
Fees
Commissions

(a) Forcign exchange gain

OTHER INCOME
() Oihers Recovenes & Swill)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Commission expense
Employment cost
Of which  Salarics
Post Employment Benefits
Other =1afl benefits
Medical Expenses
Staff training and recruitment

Rental expenses on premises and equipment

Rates and taxcs

Lighi

Printing and siationery
Advertisement

Donations

Depreciation (Note 1T)
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset
Interest on Lease Liability
Postages, telephones and swaft charges
Repairs and maimlenansce
Insurance

Enleriainment expenses
Directors' fees

Auditors remuneration
Travelling expenses

Legal fees

Local conveyance

Sundry charges

Computer and software expenses
Managemeni fees

Consultancy fees

Amoriisation of premium on Him
Penal provision ulilizoed

PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS

Provision | (recovery) for Bad and Doubtful Debts
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31-Dec-13 3-Dec-21
TZS "000 TS ")
14,235,721 13,097 427
2,905,970 2,117,492
1,830,819 1,343,024

2,179,087 596,497
B3.832 43,551
227.875 242.262
6,177.218 6,094 947
- 173

8.668.012 6,977,431
—_— e —————

339,021 261 859
'i,ﬂﬁ%% 1,910,366
1,394, 3 172,226

879,178 641,531

879,178 641,531
e T TT—

67 586 156,447

=THLId __ Tona

12,207 12413
2,991,092 3,027,016
2,392 742 2,503 684

283,069 255 6ok
315281 267 665
153,195 153,887
31,524 45,461
(0} 2
431,077 684,316
160,154 167,747

77.540 62.139

74,630 91,620

51,830 -

279,643 287,532
657,652 565,429
101,222 85,539
67,563 40,437
£52.329 476,472
419,026 534m2
106,699 65,661
48,340 48378
46,111 39,403
143,327 65,430
- 11,644
29.116 29,554
117,539 94,971
44,211 04,396
737,208 633,573
38,380 103,014
549 549
- 7,760
7371169 7,247,816
_————
2,306,357 656,015
2,306,357 656,015
] —_———
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13

14

TAX EXPENSE
Current income tax

Tax payable on instalments
Prior yeur tax

Income tax for Prior Years
Deferred income tax

Prior Period Taxes

Deferred Tax Expenses Relate 1o the Origination and Reversal of Tempaorary
Differences

Deferred Tax Linhility

Provision For Tax Foreign brunches

Addiional Tax-prior period taxes assessed
Current Period Tax

mmmmtcmspmrﬂhhtmmn:mdiﬁﬂﬂmIhtﬂ'll:ﬂﬂﬁnllmmﬂﬂlhl“uuldlﬁuuingm

statutory income tax rate as follows
Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at the statutory tax mile of 30%
Tax effeet of

Undercharge of prior period corporate tax
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Allowable expenses for tax purposes
Deductible temporary difference
Income tax expense

CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANK OF TANFANIA
Cash balances
Balances with Bank of Tanzania
=Restricted balances { Sumimory Minimwn Reserve)
-Unrestricted balances

18,955 618
———

31-Dec-23  31-Dec-22
TZS'000  TZS 000
867,709 1,598,630
95645  (203.842)
a6l 354 1,394 78RR
. —

G633%4 1394768
i T—

2067107 4,646,885
890,132 1,394,065
1035016 496, 767
(1,057,439 (292.203)
05,645 (203842

o P NS
2819128 4201945
12,234 368 10,340, 945
3002,122 4,375,040
18,917,930

The Statutory Minimum Reserve is non-mterest beaning and is based on the value of customer depossts adjusted in
accordance with Bank of Tanzania requirements As at 31st December 2022 the Statutory Minimum Reserve
requirement was 6% of the Non-(iovernment average deposit and 20% of the cenral government average deposits.

These funds are not availabie 1o finance the bank's day to day operations

DEPOSIT AND BALANCES DUE FROM BANKING INSTITUTIONS

Maostro accounis
Halances with other banks i Tanmania
Interest Recervable on Mlacements

Less: Provision for Impairment

Balances with onginal maturity of not exceeding 90 days
Halances with onginal maturity of above 90 days

GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
Treasury bills

* Treasury bonds

Uncamed discount on treasury bomds
[nferest receivatiles on ireasury bonds

Interest reccivables on treasury bills

Less: Prowvision for Impainmeznt

Treasury bills and bonds
Original maturing within 3 months from the date of acquisition
Original matunng after 3 months from the date of scquisition

Jl-Dec-23 31-Dec-22
TZS'000  TZS'000
7.518,564 2,791 444

28 T72 319 25.851.007

145.280 75,752

37436164 28718213
(120, 146) {124,433)

373160817 28,593,780

e ———————————

35716017 24 920 130
1,600,000 3,673,600

3T 31607 18,593,780

e e —" IS

15,650,010 6,002 390

25 TR3 935 20,067 025

635,306 T27.947

RA0 070 TIR 104
432017 200 374
—m'm'i’w —YTTH AT
(36) (b)

43,370,250  27,734,79%

43370250 27.734. 708

43 370 250 27.734. 708




15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

16

17

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash oquivalent comprise of the

following:

E‘uhl_mlh.lll.uul.'d-ilh Bank of Tanzania excluding SMR (Mote 11)
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions (Note 13)

Prior period adjustment (Note 32)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Corpormte loans

Of which: Debit Balance in Deposit Accounts
Orerdrafl General aceouii
Overdrafl against bank's own deposits
Demand loans
Loan Againsi Banks Own Deposdi
Term l.omns
Charged OIT Loan Accounts - Mismatch

Personal loans

Personal loan to staff

Staff housing loan

Housing Loan Public

Total lonns and advances

Accrued inferest on loans & advances

Ciross loans and advances

Tass:

Provision for impainment on loans and advances

Interesi in suspense

Net loans and advances to customers

The movement in provision for impairment of loans and advances are as follows:

Year ended 31 Docombser 2023

At stant of the vear
Charge for the year
Amaounds writien off
Rocoverics

Al end of the vear

Year ended 31 December 2022
At start of the year
Charpe for the vear

Aumounts written off
Recovenes

At end of the vear

Sector wise analyvsis of loans and sdvances

Agricubture, fishing, forestry, hunting
Manulsciuring

Real estates and construction
Trade and commerce

Personal

Individual
Transpon and communication
Hodels and restaurant

(ihers - Loan against banks own deposii

Maturity Analysis
Repavable on demand

Repavable m 3 months or fess
Repavable between 3 moavihe and | vear
Repovable after 1 vear

CURRENT TAX ASSET
Tax paid In advance
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3-Dec-23 31-Dec-22
TS "0 TFS "
6. 721,250 B.576 985
35,716,017 24,920, 180
317 -
M’ w
139,838 701 138,702,510
511,177 296 566
- BTE.012 53,441,236
4,914, TRY 2 Bl6, 893
2,249 349] 4413 537
1.498 673 T 345 8RS8
G5 TRS 628 G 0 e T
- 274313
17,246,946 19 469 984
1232857 1.268.012
498,162 239 437
73,042 -
iﬁlilﬁ?gg Iiﬂiﬁﬂlﬁ;
1,441,128 1,322 538
160 480 837 |31.002 480
(9435 400) (1,2B9 367
(418277} {376.936)
M M
Corporate loans  Personal loans Tuatal
TS " TS ' T¥S e
| 269718 19,649 1.289 367
850,720 R3 867 934,596
(922,057 (273,709 (1.195.716)
(82 847) = (B2 B4T)
h] ] ﬁﬂ i l&lﬂl M
25 797 T5T7.831
1.505 574 243
{7.653) {42, 704)
IEETI! law miﬂ
31 Do 2023 31 Dex 2022
TZS (W TIS "D
T.651.817 T.01567E
26,139 640 11,222 236
11,474,040 G ERG 36h
49,666,555 46816390
16,425,174 I 8.9%0_ 405
12498, 947 | 1004728
E.3179 486 10,700,981
12,032,795 11,650,549
16,209 204 24 175,160
— T el VL
10,200,505 2773 848
451,087 2529139
13,654 THS 11,558 328
— 136,125,280 128,141,136
i&ﬂliﬁi HIIEE]
1,413,529 1,488 697
1,413,529 1,488, 647
- ——




& f inancial Statements 2023 “otes to Financial Statemoents

: 31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22
18 OTHER ASSETS TZ5 '000 TZS "000

Suspense accounts - general 93,159 119.707
Prepaid expenses 463,548 407,546
Others 851,390 527,511
k808,007 _1054,764
19 RIGHT OF USE ASSET
As at 15t January 2,129,994 1.637.081
NHC & Mwanza LL Lease 457.205 -
Prior Period Adjustments (238,424) -
Depreciation expense (657,652) (565,429)
Skyway lease - 1.058.343
As at 31st December 1,691,123 2,129,994
20 . LEASE LIABILITY
As at 1st January 2,032,047 1,538,888
NHC & Mwanza LL Lease 457,205 -
Change as per reduction in cashflow - -
Prior Period Adjustments (286) -
Payment towards lease liability (660.692) (650,723)
Skyway lease - 1,058,343
Accrued interest 101,222 85,539

1,929,496 2,032,047
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' ]1 inancial Statenenis 2024

Moles bo Fimancial State

enls

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-22
11 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS TLS '"000 TLS "0
Term deposits, current and savings account plus accrued interest 176,590,898 152,063,679
Current accounts 23,289,526 20,881,883
Saving accounts 29.121.268 28.727.634
Term deposit accounts 120,022,708 99.416.724
Special scheme savings account 162,273 105,560
Provision for interest on deposits 4,157,397 3,037,438
176,753,172 152,169,239
—— — -

DEPOSIT AND BALANCES DUE TO BANKING INSTITUTIONS
Current account 22446 21,642
Fixed deposit 36,084,451 27,706,716
36,106,897 27,728,358
TOTAL DEPOSITS 212,860,069 179,897,596
Borrowings - -

Maturity Analysis
Repayable on demand 23,311,972 20,903,524
Repayable within 3 months 33,440,938 31,870,632
Repayable within 3 to 12 months 132,102,617 107,240,095
Repayable between | year to 5 years 24,004,542 19,883,345
212,860,069 179,897,5%
23 OTHER LIABILITIES
Bills payable 73,365 71,347
Unexpired discount on treasury 1.776 1,227
Withholding tax payable 413,939 76,930
(her payables 219,782 691,265
Inter branch accounts - credit 92,936 252,329
801,798 1,093,098
_

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax is calculated using the enacted tax rate of 30% (2022: 30%). The movement on the deferred
income tax account is as follows:

At | January (407.361) (203.519)
Credit to statement of comprehensive income 95,645 (203,842)
(311,717) (407 361)
————————
Year ended 31 December 2023 At | January Movement At 31 December
(Credited) / charged to TS 000 TZS "000 TZS '000
statement of comprehensive income
Property and equipment (216,231) (8,832) (207.399)
Provision for liabilities and charges (424,154) 104,476 (319.67T)
Net deferred tax asset (640,383) 05,645 (527.076)
“et deferred tax asset (527,076) 95.644 (640,384)
25 TAX LIABILITIES
Current tax - liability
Income tax payable 134,630 134,630
134,630 134,630
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTTIONS AND BALANCES 31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22
Partses are consadered 10 be related 1f the party has the sbality 1o control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the othet party in making financial or operatonal decisaons. In the normal course of husirsess, & mumber of banking

ransaclions are entered mio with related partees 1 ¢ kev management personnel and directors These includes deosits and
MWMnrMmmhﬂmmhMmﬁunmmﬂﬂmum

Transactions with Key Management and Direciors

) Loans and advances

There were no loans and advances to related parties other than key management team during the year 2023 (2022 Nil) There
were no deposils from companies controfled by Directors, sharcholders or their famibes (2022 Nil)

Loans and advances to key managemeni team TES D00 TZS "000
Ar 1 Janiaary e el 526.49]
Hmmﬁtm B4 273 766,937

vear 570,574 121,17
A1 31 Docember _i'.lﬁ' _“ﬁ{"rri'
b} Dreposios

There were no loans and advances to related parties other than key management team during the vear 2023 (2022 Nil) There
were no deposits from companies controlled by Directors, shareholders or their famibies (2022 Nil)

Beposits io Key management personnel TS "kl AR ]
At 1 Jarmaary 5 el 112467
Deposits dunmg the year 1.129.910 1,483 943
Withdrawals dunng the year I, 146 985 il.%ﬁlﬁl
At 31 Deceniber 169,932

The above déposits are unsecured, carry varishle miterest rates and are repayable on demand The deposits in current accounts
do not carn imterest whilst those in savings accounts earn mberest i the rate of 2% per annum These transachions are camied
out &t arm’s length. There were no deposits from companies controlled by Directors or their families (2021 Nil)

Cikey management compenss thin TS " TES "B)
Kakarves and allowanices (short term emploves benefitg ) 1,614,158 | 483 083
(kher long-ierm benefits {post-employment beneiits) 161 416 |48 30

T LA T a8

- ————§
Koy management personnel are described a3 those persons having suthonty and responsibilaty for planning. directing and
controlimg the acthities of the Bank directly or indirectly The bank s key management is the Managing Director and Deputy
Managing Director and heads of departments Compensatons of the Bank s key management personne! include basic salanes,
transport allowances, housmg allowance, telephone allowance and post-emplovment benelits

d)irectors remuserstion
- A3 pxecutives 466, 207 i oy
- Fees 48346 48,378
514,583 492,673

Transactions with subsidiaries of the Holding Company

The holdng company 1s Bank of Baroda, incorporated m India The company 15 related to other companies which are related
throusgh corrmnen sharchalding or commen directorshimps

The following transactions were camed out with related partes

Mm.ﬂlhlﬂhhﬂh‘ Belaied Pariles

Bank of Baroda MNew York 1,790,895 THI 447
Bank of Baroda  London 1,191,807 124 288
Bank of Rarods Brussels - 198,910
Bank of Raroda Mumba 3%0!! M:TEB

- — = = s ———

Net paymentsi receipts) toffrom related partios

Bank of Barods - New Yook 1,005 448 02 307
Bank of Barnda Londen B&7 519 (287 538)
Bank of Barcsls Brussels (158 3100 (154,002
Bank of Barcds Mumban Mxn Office 1?:ﬁ9 55,970

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There were no other evenis afier the reporimg penod which requine sdjusiment or disclpsure m the nancaal galements
FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

ltems mecluded in the financial statements of Bank of Barods (Tanzsnia) Limited, a subsidiary of Bank of Barods-India, are
measured umang the currency of pnmary coonomic emvaronment in whach the bank operates (the fectional currency) The
financial siaierments are presented in Tancanan Shillings (TZ5), which 13 1the subsshary's presentalion and funcixonal currecy
For group reporimg however, the presentstion curmecy 15 Indian Rupees (INR) wiale the functhional currency remams: the
Tanzanan Shallma (TAS)

CONTIGENT LIARTLITIES AND COMMITMENTS TZS "Dy TES "D00
Letter of Credits 2,329,094 1.837.032
Guaranieos 42,022 243 49,149,212

LUndrawn balances I'Iﬁ"‘”-ﬁ '?:ﬂilm
B e

Letters of credit, guaranices, acoepiances and undrawn smounis of unexpered overdrafi lines and term loans are sccounied for
s T balance sheet transactons and hence disclosed as contngent abalites

SHARE CAPTTAL TES "D TES "D
Regulatory Capital
Authonzed share capatal - 25,000, 000 ghares of TS 1,000 each F5 D0 (00 25,000, 000
25,000,000 25,000,000
lssuwed Capital
Issued snd fully paid-up share Capital 10,000, 000shares of TS 1,000 sach _ooDnG000 10,000,000
1.0, M0, M 110 AN, DD
- E————————
Rharcholders of ithe Rank Ordinnry shsres
Rank of Raroda-India 0 G06 GG 0 000 004

Suresh Ciapjar I I
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributed to the sharcholders of the subsidiary by the number of ordmnary
sharcs outstanding as at close of the year.

31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22

TZS " LA

Earmnings before taxation 2.967.107 4,646,885

Tax expense for the year (963,354) (1,394,788)

Profit attributable 1o shareholders 2,003,753 3,252,096
Mumber of shares 10,000,000 10,000,000

Basic earning per share 0.200 0.325

o

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). Diluted carnings per share is
the same as basic eamings per share.

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-22
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS TZS "0 TES 000
Additional Tax assessed (134,630) -
Dividents paid {325,200) (208,500)
Interest Receivable Reversal due to write off Loans - (186.743)
Excess Tax paid recovered 215,701 215,701
IFRS 16 - Leases entries (238,13%) 87396
Interest in suspense reversed due to write off - 20,710
Additional Provision for Loan Loss 2022 {257.168) -
Overcharged depreciation on F&F (2,659) 16,087
Reversal of depreciation for wrong entnes 2022 ; 337 -
—_—
CONTINGENT ASSETS

The bank maintain assets in respect of expenses incurred on ongoing cases in the court of law on cases [iled towards assel recovery
the recovery of which is subject to case determination in favour of the Bank. The outstanding balances of the contingent assets as
al the end of the accounting period is as under,

31-Dec-23 31-Dec-22

TES "0 TZS "000

At 1 January 752,70 671.231
Payvment during the period 40 485 81.4649
Al 31 December ’ﬁlﬂ 752,700
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